Q&A Addendum to City of Duluth, Minnesota LMS Request for Proposal 10-04DS Land Management Software
January 21, 2010

Please acknowledge this addendum by returning a signed copy with your proposal.

The following is a compilation of all vendor questions received through January 15, 2010

1.
On section V of the RFP it states that “questions received through end of day January 22, 2010 will be answered by end of business day on January 29th, 2010.”  Unfortunately this does not give any time to modify the response based on the answers to the questions.  In order to make the February 1st deadline, our response will need to be shipped on February 28th.  Please investigate the possibility of answering the questions well before that date because they answers will have a direct bearing on the responses and vendors’ approaches 

Answer:  The intent of this Q & A Addendum is to allow all vendors adequate time to meet our February 1, 2010 due date.

2.
On Page 8, Current Systems Background, the table indicates the number of concurrent land management solution users is 50.  On Page 12 the anticipated number of concurrent users is 100.  We’d like to confirm that this does indeed reflect “actual” vs “anticipated” and is not an error? 

Answer:  While we estimate 50 named users among the Building Safety (permitting) Office, the Planning and Zoning Division, GIS and MIS, it is anticipated that other departments will be using this system as well.  The licensing module will include both rental licensing (7 staff) and animal licensing (6 staff) who will each need individual user accounts.  We will need to allow our financial department to retrieve financial data from the system.  This would include staff from our Treasurer’s Office, as well as potentially a couple of users from the Finance Dept.  Depending on the assessment repository, we also anticipate several users in the system from the Assessor’s Office.  Finally, we foresee a need by our Utility Dept. to access our data.  Therefore, concurrent users in the beginning will most likely not be 100; however we need to know the cost of acquiring additional licenses post implementation to ensure that we know the costs associated.  

3.
On Page 9, Requirements section it states, “The selected vendor must be our one point of contact for all hardware, software, installation, implementation, conversion, training….”  Please define what is expected of the vendor as regards Hardware, as the RFP does state that the City will purchase new hardware for this system?  Is this referring only to mandatory or proprietary hardware that might be required for the vendor system to operate, if any?  

We will not be acquiring hardware from the software vendor unless it is mandatory or proprietary hardware, however will require recommended specifications for any hardware needed based on the proposed solution.

4.
On Page 10, Land Management Solution section, Addressing subsection, there is a requirement which states, “Ability to add, split, copy address information.”  Please explain the process referred to with “split” and “copy” address information?  Is this referring to splitting parcels or splitting addresses?  

Answer:  We would like the capability to split parcels and we anticipate a need occasionally split addresses.  As an example of splitting an address, our local mall has one address/one parcel ID; however there are multiple stores/spaces within the building.  We would like the ability to have multiple records for one address; in the case of the mall we would like the ability to have a separate ’record’ for each space.  Splitting a parcel number would be less common with parcels that have structures on them (more common with large undeveloped parcels).  We would like the ability to track things such as special use permits or rezoning that may occur in the early stages of development before a parcel is split into individual buildable lots. 

5.
On Page 10, Land Management Solution section, Addressing subsection, there is a requirement which states, “Ability to periodically import owner information from the St Louis County’s assessing software – MCIS.”  Is the City looking only to import owner information from here but not parcel information?  If so, please confirm where the parcel information will come from?  

Answer:  Parcel information does come from MCIS along with many other fields regarding the property.  At this point in time, it would not be productive to name every field that needs to be imported from MCIS; this would be defined as we work with a selected vendor.  If this is identified as needed information, it can be provided to the vendors selected to give demonstrations.    

6.
On Page 10, Land Management Solution section, Permits subsection, there is a requirement that states “Ability to integrate with Financials for permit payments including credit cards, currently in New World Systems Logos.Net.”  Are we making the correct assumption then that the new land management system should not include a Cashiering piece because cash receipting actually takes place in the New World System?   If so, then is the integration with New World Cashiering a real time, two-way integration i.e. the Land Management system generates the permit fees, passes these to the Cashiering system where payment is recorded and the payment is reflected back in the Land Management system.  If this is correct, then would the ability to management the credit card payments i.e. authentication of credit card validity etc lie with the New World Cashiering system?  If this is not the case please describe the envisaged flow?  

Answer:  The Land Management Solution needs to include a cash receipting system.  However, it needs to have the ability to export financial information regarding the daily cash receipts in order to create a journal that would then be used to import into the New World Logos .Net Financial system to reflect the daily cash receipts for the various revenue funds that are being affected.    

7. 
On Page 10, Land Management Solution section, Permits subsection, there is a requirement that states, “Desire online services including application submittal, inquiry, tracking status of permits/applications, inspection scheduling, and payment.”  If cash receipting is being conducted through the New World System cashiering system, how does the City envisage online credit card payments will occur?  The Land Management system would calculate the fees and display them online but would the City envisage that the user would then be passed to a New World Systems online user interface to effect payment and credit card authentication?  If not please describe the planned interface? 

Answer:  See answer above to Question #6.

8.
On Page 11, Land Management Solution section, GIS subsection, there is a requirement that states, “allow for a direct connection to ESRI products for live displaying of land management data such as permits, licenses, forms.”  Please explain what the City is referring to with regards to live display of “forms.”  

Answer:  Our current system does not allow for GIS integration or inclusion on any forms.  However, moving forward we envision having the capability to include GIS images on forms (examples: Inspection form - to have a GIS image with an aerial photo of the property so the Inspector knows what the property looks like prior to the inspection, and can mark up with notations if necessary.  Planning - public hearing notices - to be able to include visual images of any properties on the agenda.)

9.
Page 12 under the heading Land Management System there is a required that states All licensing data for each parcel (animal licensing, business licensing, housing rental, point of sale).  Is the City requiring a system to manage Rental Housing and Rental Inspections as part of the vendor suite?  

Answer:  Yes

10. 
Page 12 under the heading Anticipated Number of Users.  We do not understand the description of “concurrent users” vs “named users,” particularly insofar as the number of named users is smaller than that of concurrent users.  For sizing considerations, please provide a single number, for the total number of users that the City expects would use the system at the same time (i.e. concurrently), not including residents and contractors accessing the citizen-facing self-service module.   

Answer:  Please refer to the answer given to question #2 above.  Again, it is critical for vendors to include the cost of additional licenses so we know the cost for future growth.

11.
On Page 14 under the section References, the first sentence states “The city prefers vendors whose expertise, experience and knowledge is based on government practices and procedures and who specialize in governmental financial systems.”  Please state if the City is indeed looking for vendors that specialize in “financial” systems or if this is meant to read “Land Management Systems?” 

Answer:  This was a typo.  It should read, "...and who specializes in government land management systems."

12.
On page 6, item O. Number of Proposal Submissions – it states “to submit three (3) printed copies and one electronic.  However, on page 16 it states five (5) hard copies and a CD.  Please clarify which it is?  

Answer:  Page 6 contains an error.  The correct number of copies needed was listed correctly on Page 16.  Please provide five (5) hard copies and a CD.  

13.
Page 23 under the heading Data Conversion Plan, it states “The vendor is expected to perform electronic and manual data to the new system, including overall data conversion coordination…”  Is the City expecting the vendor to convert manual i.e. hard copy into the new system? 

Answer:  No, it is not our expectation to convert hard copy data; the data conversion refers to records contained in the mainframe.  

14. 
Page 24 under the heading Process Redesign Involvement, it states, “The vendor is expected to participate in process redesign sessions although the municipality will be responsible for leading these sessions and implementing the redesigned processes.”  We understand and respect that the City wishes to lead these sessions and implement the redesigned processes.  Therefore in order for vendors to price their involvement of vendor time in the redesign process and for scheduling purposes for the draft schedule, please provide further information of how the City intends to run these sessions e.g. over what time frame, how many sessions, what documentation is expected to be produced, what does the City envisage the vendor would contribute (aside of course from experience of best practices and vendor software knowledge) to the redesign deliverables etc?  

Answer:  The City envisions this process taking place immediately following contract signing and project kickoff and should be included as part of the planning process for implementation.  The City will provide the vendor with current processes and the City wishes to have the vendor evaluate and provide recommendations for best practices improvements utilizing their system to make operations and customer service as efficient as possible.

15.
Page 33 Appendix C, Training Costs – please describe the difference between a “named user” and a “departmental user?” 

Answer:  A named user is an individual that uses this software as a part of their every day job function and a departmental user might be a license reserved for general use by a department that does not frequently use the software, but may need to occasionally retrieve/look up information.  A departmental user would have rights to view only; any input into the system would be required to be done by a named user.

16.
Has the City secured an approved budget for this project?  If so, please share the budget amount?  

Answer:  This project is being included as part of the City's 2010 capital projects and will be securing funding as needed for this implementation.

17.
Has the City seen any land management software demonstrations from any vendors within the last 12 months and if so, please list the vendors?  

Answer:  No.  

18.
Will the City consider offering an additional, alternative week for vendor demonstrations should the week of February 22-26th be impossible due to existing vendor commitments?  

Answer:  In order to keep our implementation date on track, we do not have a great deal of flexibility with the demonstration week.  

19.
Would you like us to include information about our dual mode connectivity for field inspectors and code enforcement officers in the field? 

Answer:  We are interested in information on what each vendor has available for either type of solution. 

20.
Do you have laptops or tablet pc’s in use today for field inspectors/code enforcement officers?    
Neither.  We have not automated the field inspection process.  We currently manually enter data into our system after the inspection. 

21.
What is the target Go-Live date for this system?
Answer:  May 1, 2010.

22.
How many copies should be enclosed? Page 6 references 3 copies and page 16 references 5 copies.   
Answer:  See question 12 above.

23.
Which vendors are you already engaged with? Which vendors have you seen demos from in the past year? 
Answer:  Our Financial & Utility Departments utilize New World/Logos.  We have not seen any land management solution demos in the past year.

24.
Regarding the Performance and Payment Bond, is the City requiring the bond at the time of proposal submission or upon contract award? (page 31) 
Answer:  Bidders need to have a bid bond attached; City requirement is 5% of the bid. 

25.
Regarding Performance Bond letter, in the past, there has been a standardized form that vendors were asked to complete. Is this the case with the City of Duluth? If not, are there specific requirements the City expects to see in the letter?  
Answer:  We have a standard bid bond and performance form that is completed upon the award of a contract.  For the bid process the only requirement is a bid bond.  

26.
Regarding references, page 14 and 26 outline different requirements. Could you please define which list of requirements you prefer? 
Answer:  It appears that on page 14, we have asked for clients within MN or a contiguous state and on page 26, we request a list of clients similar to Duluth.  To clarify, please substitute the following text in our RFP:   (Changes underlined)
(Page 14) The vendor must supply a list of all governmental entities, which are currently using land management solution system which are of a similar demographic to the City of Duluth or are within the state of Minnesota or any contiguous state.   Contact information should include contact name, telephone number, email, date they became a client and modules that are live.  Please indicate if any of these entities are supported by third party vendors. 

The vendor shall also provide information on the two (2) most recently completed and installed modules as well as at least two (2) entities that have been in operation for a minimum of three (3) years.  With this list, provide the name and demographic information of the governmental entity (Operating Budget, Total General Fund Budget, Total CIP budget, Number of Employees, Number of System Users), reference names, addresses, phone and email contacts, major release number, purchase date, installation date, planned production date and actual production date. 

(Page 26) Provide contact information (delete person and phone number) of three (3) recent clients that are similar to the city of Duluth by location or demographics.  Please indicate how long they have been a client and which systems they are using.

Client Name: 

Contact Name: 

Contact Phone Number:

Contact e-mail:

Been a Client Since: 

Modules that are live: 

27.
The RFP states that there will be 100 concurrent users and 70 named users.  Does that mean there will be a total of 170 unique user profiles within the system, or are the 70 named users a subset of the 100 concurrent users? Our software pricing is dependent on the user breakdown, so in an effort to not over inflate our bid, any further clarification in regards to user base would be greatly appreciated.  

Answer:  Please see answer to question #2 above.
28.
How many users will require use of GIS maps within the proposed Land Management system?  

Answer:  We anticipate that all named users will need the use of the GIS maps.  

29.
How many reports does the City of Duluth expect the vendor to configure as part of the implementation? Does the city anticipate a portion of the report writing services to be handled by city staff?  

Answer:  The City seeks to know what canned reporting is available from the system as it is.  The City seeks to utilize canned reports as much as possible for processing of daily, monthly, and yearly information.  If report customization is necessary, please provide an hourly rate for report generation.  The City will determine if customization will take place by City MIS staff or by the vendor based on the amount of customization needed and cost factors.

30.
What is the overall vendor-provided professional services expectation? Full service / comprehensive onsite workflow analysis, etc...

Answer:  The City envisions the vendor providing full service professional services.  As a part of these services, immediately following contract signing and project kickoff the planning process for implementation should begin.  The City will provide the vendor with current processes and the City wishes to have the vendor evaluate and provide recommendations for best practices improvements utilizing their system to make operations and customer service as efficient as possible.

31.
What level of city staff involvement is the city dedicating to the project?  IT, project management and analysis staff etc... 

Answer:  The City will have staff involvement from all of the involved areas of operation (IT, Building Safety, Clerks - Licensing, Assessment, Planning, Finance, Treasury, etc.).  There will be a project lead from City staff to handle all communications and be the communication liaison for the City's side of the project.  The vendor is expected to have a project manager for this project that will handle all of the project management time line documents, as well as manage the project and serve as the communications liaison for the vendor's side of this project.  

32.
Has a project budget been allocated? if so, what is the city dedicated budget for this project?  

Answer:  See answer to question #16 above. 

33.
Is the City interested in an integrated IVR (Interactive Voice Response) solution that can be used by citizens via an automated telephone service? 

Answer:  Yes.   The City is in the initial process of identifying the need for our Utility and Finance Departments to utilize IVR with a goal of implementation as part of the unified approach to cash collections throughout our City operations.  

34.
Is the City interested in vendors providing software pricing for the ability to submit and markup plan sets electronically (electronic plans review) native to the Land Management system? 
Answer:  At this point in time, we are not planning to make electronic plan review an option for customers, however, we are interested in exploring the possibility of this functionality as a future phase of our project.

